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PARISH OF HAYDON

Report of the Executive Director of Local Services
Cabinet Member: Councillor Glen Sanderson, Environment & Local Services

Purpose of report

In this report, the Committee is asked to give consideration to all the relevant
evidence gathered in support and rebuttal of a proposal to add to the Definitive Map
and Statement a restricted byway from the U8057 road west of Low Yexley Wood in a
general northerly and north-easterly direction to a point north-west of Coastley Farm
and also from the U8059 road west of the Coastley Farm in a general north-westerly
and easterly direction to a point south-west of Common Cottages.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Committee agree that:

i) there is sufficient evidence to indicate that restricted byway rights
have been reasonably alleged to exist over the routes A - B,C-D
and F - G;

ii) there is sufficient evidence to indicate that on the balance of
probability restricted byway rights have been proven to exist over
that part of existing Public Bridleway No 42 between points G - E;

iii)  the routes should be included in a future Definitive Map
Modification Order as a restricted byways.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 By virtue of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act, 1981, the County
Council is required to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous
review and make modification orders upon the discovery of evidence, which
shows that the map and statement need to be modified.



1.2 The relevant statutory provisions which apply to adding and upgrading a public
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2.2

right of way on the Definitive Map and Statement based on historical
documentary evidence are Section 53(3)(c)(i) and (ii) of the Wildlife and
Countryside Act, 1981, which require the County Council (as Surveying
Authority) to modify the Definitive Map and Statement following:

“the discovery by the authority of evidence which (when considered with
all other relevant evidence available to them) shows:

“that a right of way which is not shown in the map and statement
subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist over land in the area
to which the map relates, being a right of way such that the land
over which the right subsists is a public path, a restricted byway
or, subject to section 54A, a byway open to all traffic;”

or

“that a highway shown in the map and statement as a highway of
a particular description ought to be there shown as a highway of
a different description;”

All the relevant statutory provisions and competing rights and interests have
been considered in making this report. The recommendation is in accordance
with the law and proportionate, having regard to individuals’ rights and the
public interest.

PUBLIC EVIDENCE

In April 2016, Janet Lennard of Hexham submitted an application to amend the
Definitive Map and Statement to add a restricted byway from a point marked A
on the U8057 road immediately to the west of Low Yexley Wood in a northerly
direction for a distance of 665 metres to a point marked B on the C284 road
south-east of Lowes Fell Farm, then continuing from a point marked C on the
C284 road south-east of Lowes Fell Farm in a northerly and north-easterly
direction for a distance of 2330 metres to a point marked D 475 metres
north-west of Coastley Farm, then from a point marked F on the U8059 road
immediately west of the Coastley farm buildings in a general north-westerly
and easterly direction for a distance of 1380 metres, crossing the A69 Trunk
Road then continuing over a length of existing Public Bridleway No 42 to a
point marked E immediately south-west of Common Cottages.

The application is supported by historical evidence including the 1755 Hexham
East & West Inclosure Award, Armstrong’s Map of 1769, an 1819 plan for
altering & diverting part of the Hexham Turnpike Road, Fryer's Map of 1820,
Greenwood’s Map of 1828, the 1830 plan of the Hexham Turnpike Road, the
1838 & 1841 Tithe Awards for Hexham and Hexham West Quarter, the 1864
Hexham & Allendale Railway Plan, the 1%t Edition O.S. 25" plan of 1866 with
the accompanying Book of Reference, the 2" Edition O.S. 6” plan of 1898, the
1910 Finance Act records and the 3" Edition O.S. 6” plan of 1924,



2.3

The application was also accompanied by the following submission:
The application route

1. “Atits south end, the line of the alleged route leaves the U8057 at GR
878635 (A), east of East Elrington. It goes in a north easterly direction and
then makes a sharp bend to the right at (C) which lies south west of Glendue.
It continues in a north easterly direction past where Coastely Fell House used
to be before turning south east at (D) to finish at Coastely (E) on the U8299
road GR 899654.

2. “The branch to Greenshaw Plain goes in a north westerly direction from GR
895656 (D). It makes a sharp turn at point F to meet the A69 at GR 894662
on the opposite side of the road from the start of public bridleway 520/042.
Historically the alleged route continues to Common House (G) which is on this
bridleway, which is described in the inclosure award as Wharmiey Road.

3. “Because of its length, various reference points (A - G) have been marked
on a copy of the current OS map to aid identification.

4. “For its full length it is in the parish of Haydon today and is shown on the
OS Explorer OL 43.

5. “For most of its length it is in a walled lane approximately 10 - 12 metres
wide. lts surface is largely grass over stone. The presence of the grass over
stone can be deducted from the evidence of impeded drainage illustrated by
the growth of reeds on those sections visible from public roads today.

6. “There are sections which are unfenced, mainly south of (B) where the
fence/wall on the west side of the alleged route no long remains and along the
section called Greenshaw Bank. There are a number of gates along the route.
These can be seen on Google Earth.

7. “Currently there is no recorded definitive right of way along it. No record of
it having been stopped up has been found in the Quarter Sessions file.

See map with points of reference marked. See also photographs of the route.
Documentary evidence

1. 1755 Hexham East & West Inclosure Award Ref of Plan ZG| XXXI/1-2

“This early inclosure award was made under the local act of 1747. Itis a very
large plan showing most of the current public roads to the south and west of
Hexham but none of the roads are named. The plan shows the full length of
the alleged route in the same manner as the surrounding network of public
tarmac roads today. It is shown as a walled lane for most of its length.
Adjacent land/farms present today on the OS, which are shown on this plan,
include Elrington Ground, Longhope Ground and Coastley Ground. Mr Robert



Lowes is shown as the owner of the allotment where now there is a farm called
Lowes Fell.

“The document has been digitised and can be seen at Woodhorn. The
reference of the section showing the alleged route is ZGI 32/2 (full sheet). On
it details can be seen which are hard to read on the original copy for example
the line of the turnpike road which crosses the alleged route at (B) is shown as
a faint double dash line.

The award is a separate document. Ref of award QRD 2/1

“This is a large volume containing this award along with other similar
documents. The relevant part can be found on pages 130 -187.

On page 131 lower

‘And also that those Commissioners or any five or more of them should
ascertain, set out and appoint proper publick Highways and Roads in upon
and through those Commons to be inclosed with the size and breadth thereof..

“On page 134 lower

‘And we the Commissioners do hereby set out and award that it shall be
lawful for all persons hereafter to pass and repass in through and along all
and every of these publick highways known before us set out and
appointed on foot on horseback or with any manner of carts and carriages and
also to drive any and all manner of cattle along the same.’

“From reading the details in the award, it can be seen that the alleged route is
made up of parts of three of the awarded public roads. All three are
described as being 12 yards wide. Frequently the description of a particular
road refers to roads which have been awarded earlier on in the award.

“The public roads which make up the alleged route are:

e Woodshield Road
e Greenshawbank Road
e Road from Coastley West Gate

Woodshield Road (see page 138 upper)

“This awarded road starts at (A), the southernmost point on the alleged route.
'It leads from Elrington Road.... In a direction to the north east across the
turnpike road.” This is point B on the location plan.

‘It continues ‘until it crosses the road from Coastley West Gate nearly north'.
This takes the alleged route to (C) on the location plan.

“This awarded road (Woodshield Road) then continues in a general north
westerly direction until it ends at Keepershield Gate but this application is not
concerned with the section of this road beyond (C) in that direction.



Road from Coastley West Gate (see page 137 lower)

“This awarded road makes up the section of the allegedroute E-D -C and is
described as ‘leading from Coastley West Gate westwards to the south end of
Greenshawbank Road (E - D).’ It then continues in the same direction ‘until it
enters the turnpike road......east of Woodhall Gate.’

“This describes the full length of this awarded road but thia application is only
concerned with the section to (C). The part continuing south west beyond (C)
in the direction of Woodhall Gate is not part of the application.

Greenshaw Bank Road (see page 137 lower)

“This awarded road makes up the section of the alleged route G - F - D. Itis
described as being ‘from Wharmley Gate .... Winding south eastwards up
Greenshaw Bank, then nearly south until it enters the highway set out and
called by the name of the Road from Coastley Westgate’. The junction
between these two highways is at point (D).

“At the bottom of Greenshaw Bank, there is a label indicating the presence of
Greenshawbank Well (see location plan) which would have been an
important facility on a route used for driving cattle as the term ‘drift road’ on the
Tithe Award plan suggests. (see below)

See extracts from the plan and the sketch map.

2. 1769 Armstrong’s Map of Northumberland

“The point where the alleged route crosses the C284 (B) near Langhope is
shown clearly on this map but the full length of the route is not shown. From
the key it can be seen that it is shown in the manner of a ‘country road’, the
same as other minor public tarmac roads in the area.

See extract from this map.

3. 1819 Plan for Altering & Diverting part of the Hexham Turnpike Road Ref
NRO 317/26

“In 1819, the road that is today the C284 was the turnpike from Hexham going
west towards Carlisle, with the toll bar at Summerrods.

“The plan shows the intersection between the turnpike and the alleged route at
point (B). Itis labelled ‘awarded road’, referring to the plan of the inclosure
award described above. It is unlikely that it would have been necessary to
show this intersection if the alleged route had not been public at that time. It
also labels as ‘drift road’ the road described in the inclosure award as ‘Oxen
Road'. This today is a public bridleway known as Cushat lane (524/029).

See extract from this plan showing the intersection.



4. 1820 Fryer's Map of Northumberland

“The full length of the alleged route (A - E) and its branch (D - G) is shown
along with the farm names of Longhope, Coastley and East Elrington. It is
shown as a walled road throughout. From the key it can be seen that it is
shown in the manner of ‘other roads’, the same as many minor public tarmac
roads in the area today.

See extract from this map

5. 1828 Greenwood’s Map of Northumberland

“The full length of the alleged route to Coastley can be seen. It is shown as a
walled road except for the section on Greenshaw Bank which is shown as
unfenced. From the key it can be seen to be shown in the manner of a ‘cross
road’, the same as many minor country roads in the area.

See extract from this map

6. 1830 Plan of the Hexham Turnpike Road

“This later plan of the Hexham Turnpike also shows the intersection of the
alleged road with the turnpike at (B)..

See extract from the plan

7. 1839/1841 Tithe Awards

“The tithe plan covering West Quarter Township Ref: DT 242 M shows the
full length of the alleged route clearly with each of the roads being labelled as
follows:

“Point (A) is shown to be on a road labelled ‘Road from Elrington’

“Point (B) is shown to be on a road labelled ‘Road from Haydon Bridge’

“Beyond point (C) the label on the alleged route itself is ‘Road to West
Boat’ [there used to be a ferry across the Tyne from West Boat.]

“At point (F), the road coming in from the west is labelled ‘Road from Haydon
Bridge’

“Point (G) is at the junction of the two roads, one labelled ‘Road from
Wharmley’ and the other ‘To West Boat’ (BR 520/024).

“The unfenced section of the alleged route to Coastely (E) is shown, as is the
road from there up the hill past Hackford (BR 524/003), which is labelled ‘Road
to Low Gate and Hexham'.

“This shows that the alleged route is treated in the same manner as other
roads in the area which carry public rights today.



“The tithe plan covering Hexham Township Ref: DT 241 L shows the alleged
route from point (A) to a point beyond (C) close to Glendue, where the
township boundary crosses the alleged route. It is labelled ‘drift road’ which
suggests that the public rights to drive cattle mentioned in the Inclosure Award
were the main use for the route. This is backed up by the presence of a
Greenshawbank Well, a little further on towards F, which is marked on the
inclosure award and on the 1! ed OS map (see below).

“The junction at (B) where the alleged route crosses the turnpike road, labelled
'to Hexham'’ to the east and ‘to Haydon Bridge’ to the west, can be clearly

seen. ltis unlikely that there would have been a need to show this junction if
the alleged route had been private.

“The distinctive bend in the alleged route at point (F) is also shown, as is the
continuation down past Greenshaw Plain House to Common House at G,

“There is no mention of any roads in the award itself.

No extracts from these plans are provided as permission to photograph them
was withheld as the documents belong to the church.

8. 1864 Hexham & Allendale Railway Plan Ref: Q/R/UP 114 a&b

“On sheet no 1. The alleged route is shown crossing the zone of deviation for
the railway in the parish of Hexham. Plot 43 is described as ‘public road’
belonging to the Commissioners of Greenwich Hospital and the Highways
Board for Hexham.

“In addition, to the south of the line of the proposed railway, the road pattern of
the alleged route is shown with the junction at (D) and the sharp bend at (F).

This is beyond the zone of variations so does not have a plot number in the
Book of Reference for Hexham parish.

See extracts from the plan and the Book of Reference.

9. 1865 OS ed. Scale 1:2,500, 25" Sheets XClIl/4, XCIII/8 & XCIV/1

“The section of the alleged route from A just north of Langhope is shown on
Sheet XCIII/8 to be in plot 90 lying in the Parish of Hexham, Township of
Hexham. In the Book of Reference for this parish and township, plot 90 is
described as ‘public road’.

“The alleged route continues on sheet XClIl/4 with the same plot number (90)
to the point where the township boundary crosses it as it turns north. This
occurs beyond point (C) and south east of Glendue.

“After that the alleged route continues past Coastley Fell House, still on Sheet
XCIll/4. But now it has passed into the Parish of Hexham, Township of
West Quarter detached no 1. It is labelled with the plot number 45.

“The alleged route then continues, still as plot number 45, to D but it is now on
Sheet XCIV/1. The section labelled ‘Greenshaw bank’ leading down to



Coastley (E) is unfenced but it is shown with a broken brace and is again
labelled as plot 45 so it is clearly a continuation of the same public road. In
the Book of Reference for this parish and township, plot 45 is described as
‘public road’

“The branch to Greenshaw Plain (D - F) is fenced with the first part before it
crosses the township boundary having the plot number 7. This section is still
in Hexham Parish, West Quarter Township detached no 1. In the Book of
Reference plot 7 is described as ‘public road’.

“Beyond the parish boundary, this leg of the alleged route passes back into
Hexham Parish, Hexham Township with the plot number being 24. This
plot number is also described as ‘public road’ in the Book of Reference for
this parish and township.

See extracts from this OS series and from the Book of Reference

10. 1898 2" ed OS scale 1:10,560 Sheets XCIII NE & XCIV NW

“The alleged route and the branch to Greenshaw Plain are clearly shown. The
southern section, from (A) to just past Coastley Fell House, not far from (D) is
on sheet XCIll NE. The more northerly part both to Coastley and to
Greenshaw Plain is shown on sheet XCIV NW

“The section between Coastley (E) and the junction at (D) is labelled
‘Greenshaw Bank’. This section is unfenced and has the label ‘BR’ against it.
No such label is to be found elsewhere on the alleged route or the branch.

See extracts from this OS series.
11. 1910 Finance Act plan Sheets XClIl/4, XCIII/8 & XCIV/1
Book of Reference Ref: NRO 2000/77 & 2000/75

“On the Finance Act plan for this area the township boundaries are highlighted
with a wide yellow band which makes it difficult to see the underlying colours
used to indicate the landownership boundaries. But it would appear, if the plan
is examined with a magnifying glass, that the alleged route is shown as a
‘white road’ for much of its length indicating that is not in the ownership of the
adjacent landholders.

“Using the Book of Reference NRO 2000/77 for the West Quarter Township
it can be seen that none of the adjacent properties - Langhope (plot 206).
Coastley Fell House (plot 210), Coastley) plot 204) are aware deductions for
public rights of way which is what you would expect if the alleged route was
considered to be a public road and therefore would not have been included in
any of these plots.

“Similarly in the Book of Reference NRO 2000/75 for Hexham Township, it
can be seen that there is no deduction for other adjacent properties -
Greenshaw Plain House, Common House, Lowes Fell (plot 2125) and
Glendue (plot 2017).



“It should be noted that there is also no deductions for two further awarded
roads in the area - Wharmley Road and Oxen Road, which today are public
bridleways 520/042 and 524/029.

“However the section from D - E which is shown as being unfenced, is
included in the land holding of plot 204 attached to Coastley.

See extracts from the plans

12. 1924 3" ed OS. Scale 1:10,560 Sheet 91 SE

“The alleged route and the branch to Greenshaw Plain are shown in a similar
manner to that on the 2nd ed OS. However by this time the wall either side on
the section (A) - (B) is no longer complete. The western side has disappeared
for about two thirds of this section. However the two walls remain intact for the
rest of the alleged route and branch with the exception of Greenshaw Bank as
described above as far as one can see from a public road or bridleway.

See extracts from this OS series
Conclusion
“It would appear that this well documented ancient public highway was omitted

from the definitive map in the 1950s. Please can you investigate whether it
should be added now as a restricted byway?”

3. LANDOWNER EVIDENCE

3.1

By email received 13th April 2017 Peter Combe of Land Factor, agent to
James Straker responded with the following comments.

i) “All of the land in question is owned by James Straker That is a. A - B
on your plan b. C - D on your plan. ¢. D - F on your plan d.D - E on
your plan (other than the A69 which is understood to be owned by
Highways England).

ii) “Mr Straker’s starting point is to refute the claimed right of way.

iii) “Mr Straker wishes to have a researcher look at the historic evidence
set out in the 3" paragraph of your letter of 6™ April 2017. He is
currently seeking to find such a person and engage them.

iv)  “I note your request for information by 30" June 2017 and an intended
late 2017/early 2018 Rights of Way Committee consideration of the
matter. We will do what we can at this end to comply but as you will be
aware good researchers tend to be busy.”
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4.2

5.1

CONSULTATION

In January 2017, the Council carried out a consultation with the Parish
Council, known owners and occupiers of the land and the local representatives
of the “prescribed and local organisations” listed in the Council's “Code of
Practice on Consultation for Public Path Orders”.

By letter in May 2017 the County Access & Bridleways Officer for the British
Horse Society responded to the consultation with the following comments:

“This proposal has its origins in the Inclosure Award of 1755 in which
public highways were laid out as a result of an Act of Parliament. The
fact that this network of ‘old roads’ is backed up by later documents
shows that the routes came into being and were recognised as public
roads over a long period of time.

“This significant addition of off-road routes in an area where the roads
are increasingly busy will be of great benefit to the safety of all
vulnerable road users - walkers, cyclists and horse riders alike.”

DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE

A search has been made, relating to historical evidence and the following
copies of O.S. Maps are enclosed for consideration.

1753 An Act for Inclosing and dividing Wastes and Common in the
Manor of Hexham in the County of Northumberland.

The said Commissioners or any five or more of them shall and
may ascertain set out and appoint proper publick highways and
roads in upon and through the said commons so to be inclosed.

1755 Hexham East Common & West Common Inclosure Award

The Award sets out ‘Public Highways & Roads’ described thus:
Greenshaw Bank Road

And we do also set out and appoint a public Highway 12 yards in
breadth through the said West Common as the same is now
propt and staked and set out leading out of the Wharnley Road
at about nine chains south from Wharnley Gate in a direction
west for the space of 20 Chains and a half or thereabouts to
Greenshaw Bank and thence winding south-eastward up
Greenshaw Bank for the space of 6 chains or thereabouts and
thence in a direction nearly south till it enters the highway next
hereinafter set out and called by the name of the Road from
Coastley West Gate. Which last described Highway we shall
hereinafter refer to & call by the name of the Greenshaw Bank
Road.



Road from Coastley West Gate

And we do also set out & appoint a public Highway 12 yards in
breadth through the said West Common leading from Coastley
West Gate westward to the South end of the Greenshaw Bank
Road and from thence west till it enters the Turnpike Road from
Glenwhelt to Shildon at about 10 yards east of Woodhall Gate as
the same is now propt staked & set out. Which said last
described Highway we shall hereinafter refer to and call by the
nhame of the Road from Coastley Westgate.

Woodshields Road

1769

1820

“And we do also set out and appoint a Public Highway 12 yards
in breadth through the said west Common leading out of the
Elrington Road at about 10 chains east of Elrington Gate in a
direction to the north-east across the Turnpike Road and thence
in the same direction for the space of 46 chains or thereabouts
from the Turnpike Road until it crosses the road from Coastley
West Gate and thence nearly north for the space of 26 chains or
thereabouts and thence in a direction inclining eastward for the
space of 9 chains or thereabouts and thence north-westwards for
the space of 9 chains or thereabouts to the Brow of the Hill and
thence winding north-eastwards and northwards to the Foot of
the Hill and from thence northwards till it joins the inclosed lands
of Wharnley and thence westward by the south side of the said
inclosed lands for the space of 3 chains and from thence in the
same direction for the space of 1% chains and thence in a
direction more to the north for the space of 1% chains and
thence branching westward to Little Side and northwestward to
Keepershield Gate as the same is now propt, staked and set out
which last described Highway shall hereafter refer to and call by
the name of Woodshields Road.

And we the said Commissioners do hereby Direct and Award
that it shall and may be lawful for all persons hereafter to pass
and repass in through and along all and every of the said
respective public Highways herein by us set out & appointed
through the said West Common on foot on horseback or with any
manner of Carts & Carriages and also to drive any and all
manner of cattle along the same.

Armstrong’s County Map

There is evidence of a spur off the Hexham to Haydon Bridge
road to the west of Langhope.

Fryer's County Map

There is evidence of a track over the entire length of the claimed
routes with the section at Coastley annotated with dashed lines.



1828

1820-32

1839

1841

1864

1865

1898

1924

Greenwood’s County Map

There is evidence of a track over the entire length of the claimed
routes with the section at Coastley annotated with dashed lines.

Cary’s Map

There is evidence of a track approximating the entire length of
the claimed route.

West Quarter Township Tithe Award DT 242M (No Plan)

The entire section of the claimed route through West Quarter
township is identified on the plan and annotated ‘Road from
Elrington’ and ‘Road from Haydon Bridge and ‘Road to West
Boat'.

Hexham Township Tithe Award (No Plan) DT 241L (No Plan)

The section of the route within the Hexham township is
annotated as ‘drift road’.

Deposited Plan: Hexham & Allendale Railway

The section of the route to immediately to the south of the current
A69 Trunk Road is annotated with the number 43 and described
in the accompanying schedule as a ‘Public Road'.

1°* Edition O.S. Map: Scale 1:10.560 (reduced)

There is evidence of an enclosed track over the majority of the
claimed route. The section to the west of Coastley is depicted as
a double dashed line.

2™ Edition O.S. Map: Scale 1:10.560 (reduced)

There is evidence of an enclosed track over the majority of the
claimed route except the section to the north-west of Coastley.
(though still labelled Greenshaw Bank).

3™ Edition O.S. Map: Scale 1:10.560

There is evidence of an enclosed track over the majority of the
claimed route but not all of the section to the south of the C284
road. The section to the north-west of Coastley is depicted as a
double dashed and solid line with the addition of ‘bench marks’
and labelled Greenshaw Bank.



6.1

7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

1952 O.8. Map: Scale 1:10,560

There is evidence of an enclosed track over the majority of the
claimed route but not all of the section to the south of the C284
road. The section to the north-west of Coastley is depicted as a
double dashed and solid line with the addition of ‘bench marks’
and labelled Greenshaw Bank.

1958 Bridges & Roads Committee Minutes

The alleged routes were not included on the ‘draft’ definitive map
but were added as footpaths to the ‘draft’ (modified) map
following representations.

SITE INVESTIGATION

To date no site visit has been conducted.

COMMENTS RECEIVED ON THE DRAFT REPORT

In August 2017, a draft copy of the report was circulated to all of the interested
parties that responded to the consultation.

In October 2017 Land Factor, Solicitors responded by email on behalf of the
Leazes Estate to indicate that they were considering the matter but were
currently minded to object to the claimed public rights of way.

DISCUSSION

Section 53(3)(c)(i) and (ii) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, requires
the County Council to modify the Definitive Map when evidence is discovered
which, when considered with all other relevant evidence available to them
shows:

that a right of way which is not shown in the map and statement
subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist over land in the area to
which the map relates, being a right of way such that the land over
which the right subsists is a public path, a restricted byway or, subject to
section 54A, a byway open to all traffic; or

that a highway shown in the map and statement as a highway of a
particular description ought to be there shown as a highway of a
different description.

When considering an application or proposal for a modification order, Section
32 of the Highways Act, 1980 provides for “any map, plan or history of the
locality or other relevant document” to be tendered in evidence and such
weight to be given to it as considered justified by the circumstances, including
the antiquity of the tendered document, the status of the person by whom and



8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

the purpose for which it was made or compiled, and the custody in which it has
been kept and from which it is produced.

The representation of a path or track on an Ordnance Survey Map is not
conclusive evidence that it is a public right of way. Itis only indicative of its
physical existence at the time of the survey.

The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC Act 2006)
had a major impact upon the recording of byways open to all traffic based
upon historical documentary evidence. Under section 67 of the Act, any
existing, but unrecorded, public rights of way for mechanically propelled
vehicles were extinguished unless one of the ‘saving’ provisions applied. In
brief, these saving provisions were: (a) if the main lawful public use between
2001 and 2006 was with motor vehicles; (b) if the route was on the List of
Streets (on 2 May 2006) and not also on the Definitive Map as something less
than a byway open to all traffic; (c) the route was legally created expressly for
motor vehicular use; (d) the route was a road deliberately constructed for
public motor vehicular use; or (e) the vehicular highway came about as a result
of unchallenged motor vehicular use before December 1930. None of the
above saving provisions apply to the claimed route therefore, if the track were
to be recorded as a restricted byway, it would be an offence for any member of
the public to use the route with a mechanically propelled vehicle without the
landowner’s permission.

The County Maps of Armstrong, Fryer, Greenwood and Cary appear to depict
a track over all or part of the claimed route. If the purpose of the maps was to
depict commercial travel routes throughout the County then it is reasonable to
assume that the route carried higher rights than public footpath.

All of the Ordnance Survey plans from the 1st Edition map ¢1860 to the plan in
1952 depict a track over the majority of the claimed route. It is noted that on
the more modern O.S. maps the route between points D - F is annotated with
‘Bench Marks’.

The Hexham East & West Inclosure Award sets out all of the claimed route A -
B - C-D -G -E as 'Public Highways 12 yards in breadth. Although the middle
and eastern section of the route between points D — F (Greenshaw Bank), is
outwith the land to be Inclosed it is reasonable to assume that the evidence is
sufficient to support an assertion that a route continued over Grenshaw Bank
to Coastley and that the status of the route would reflect the same status as
the Inclosure awarded highways.

The Hexhamshire West Quarter Tithe Award depicts tracks over the entire
length of the claimed route and is identified as ‘Road to West Boat’ with the
road to the south-east of Coastley identified as ‘Road to Lowgate and Hexham’
The annotation would suggest that the route is part of the highway network
and is likely that the meaning of the word ‘road’ would have directed to all
manner of traffic including carts and carriages.

The 1st Edition Ordnance Survey ‘Book of Reference’ and the Railway
deposited plan both depict parts of the route as ‘Public Roads’, including the
section over Greenshaw Bank.



8.10 Upon inspection of the documents for the preparation of the Definitive Map
and Statement the alleged routes were not identified on the ‘survey’ or ‘draft’
map. The Ramblers’ Association made a representation to the Draft Map
seeking their inclusion as public footpaths (most likely on the basis of user
evidence). The landowner, C B Straker, Esq objected to the paths being
included on the Definitive Map and following a hearing it was determined that
the paths should not be added. The County Council is unaware of the nature
of the evidence produced at the Hearing either by the Ramblers’ Association
or the landowner.

8.11 In the light of the evidence submitted it appears that the historical evidence is
sufficient to support an assertion that, public vehicular rights have been
reasonably alleged to exist over the route and exist on the balance of
probabilities for the section currently recorded as Public Bridieway No 42.

8.12  Advice from the Planning Inspectorate states that it is important to have the
correct width, where known, recorded in the definitive statement. It is
considered appropriate therefore, that if the route were to be included in any
future modification order as a restricted byway, the width should be recorded
as 10.97 metres to reflect the width of 12 yards as set out in the Inclosure
Award.

9. CONCLUSION

9.1 Inthe light of the evidence submitted it appears that, restricted byway rights
have been reasonably alleged to exist over the route.

9.2 In the light of the evidence submitted it appears that restricted byway rights
have, on the balance of probabilities been shown to exist over that part of
existing Parish of Haydon Public Bridleway No 42 between the A69 Trunk road
and Common Cottages.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Local Services Group File E/20/68-70z

Report Author John McErlane - Definitive Map Officer
(01670) 624136

John.McErlane@northumberland.gov.uk
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PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY
WILDLIFE AND COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981, PART III
DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT FOR THE COUNTY OF NORTHUMBERLAND

APPLICATION FOR MODIFICATION ORDER

Former Borough/District ... Tl NS N L s
Parish ... LA L IIOMN s ssessaas s Rights of Way NO. ........... pererrr S
(on Definitive Map)
To: Asset & Infrastructure Manager
Northumberland County Council
County Hall
Morpeth
Northumberland
NES61 2EF
IWe e AR T I ERETE AR e ssssssssessssesaesiseesessssieses (Name)
of . 00 NS WO o Wl = R . 2N wal A SO0 = (Address)
o EERIEATA N E o e Zeeeeeeeeee s e

hereby apply for an order, under Section 53 (2) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, modifying the Definitive Map
and Statement for the County of Northumberland, by:-

@ Adding the (footpath) (eridleway) (restricted byway) (byway-opento-atttraffic) (Delete whichever is inapplicable)
from ... C‘R%T"gé35 .................................................................................................................................

o GR.R3Y.6.5tk.... st 2 bretc . T LR B - 66 2

2. (Upgrading) (downgrading) to a (footpath) (bridleway) (restricted byway) (byway open to all traffic) the (footpath)
(bridleway) (restricted byway) (byway open to all traffic) (Delete whichever is inapplicable)

FEOTIL oot eeveseasseesasasteaseeeeaneeeestan et aesetanTasasseseseatassestaatareoaransvabasasehtsanaatoa e e taaraars s ohssA e R L RO e eSOt eSS L AR RS b et

£O reeeesvesveseseeeseesuessessisstsssessevsresetasseessiaveREeELSbLEvLeEESaseANReNsernt e r e e R AL T bt

3 Deleting the (footpath) (bridleway) (restricted byway) (byway open to all traffic) (Delete whichever is inapplicable)

FFOTIL  oeoveveeverasemsosamemesessacosessasasesssesesasnsssassssrasasessasssstansssarnstssrsansnrosssssssmasessstasshesms e ebsared 1Eat et st S0 s a s bt Lt e S

£O eeeeereeeeseeesssesesameressctssessesstasasEEeesaneesiisieRstronasEeTan nnTeanaar e e ag e LN TN ee s 4L b s S e n eSS s

4, (Varying) (adding to) the particulars relating to the (footpath) (bridleway) ) (restricted byway) (byway open to

all traffic) (Delete whichever is inapplicable)
FEOML  eooeeeoeeeoeeeesessssasssssessssosasesenerenaescasessaatassssbass bt saeRer e e e £ a8 SRR PO Lo bR AR R A A SRR AR SRt SO L3RS s TS
B0 eeerverseessesesseessestessresssieesessessessseeserasenteseiatiestesteneTaneseane e ieiahe e SNt g LSS S RS
DY PTOVIGHNE ENAE +everveeecsemsaserersssssnssessssessssssssese e eess e ss s R

as shown on the plan attached.

I/We attach copies of the following documentary evidence (including statements of witness) set out overleaf in support of
this application.

NOTE: This application must be accompanied by a map showing the right(s) of way applied for. Legally such a map must be
at a scale of not less than 2%" to 1 mile, but 6" to 1 mile (being the scale at which the Definitive Map isto be
prepared and maintained) will normally be preferable.
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PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY

WILDLIFE AND COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981, PART Il
DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT FOR THE COUNTY OF NORTHUMBERLAND

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE OF NOTICE OF
APPLICATION FOR MODIFICATION ORDER

Former Borough/District ....... BT N B N SO OO
Parish .......... n I R O
To: Asset & Infrastructure Manager

Local Services Group

Northumberland County Council

County Hall

Morpeth

NES61 2EF
UWe e L DS T L\ENNA&E ........................................................................ (Name)
of ... N T = R TS WA G Y - vl =S (Address)

X AL INE AL DB Z e

hereby certify that the requirements of Paragraph 2 of Schedule 14 to the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 have been
complied with, and each of the following landowners and occupiers affected by the claim have been notified.

Name Address

DA T AT Stedker.. Graswadew Hovas Herbow., WEKEIPT

..... M2 S . Gleindiss Fante, Hex ko, NE ke 2P
Me. B Sasbio [T TN K UGN - Y AU —

.....................................................................................................................................................................................

.....................................................................................................................................................................................

.....................................................................................................................................................................................
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The Road to Coastley with a branch to Greenshaw Plain

The Alleged Route

1.

At its south end, the line of the alleged route leaves the U 8057 at GR 878635 (A),
east of East Elrington. It goes in a north easterly direction crossing the C 284 near
Langhope (B). It continues in that direction and then makes a sharp bend to the
right at (C) which lies south west of Glendue. It continues in a north easterly
direction past where Coastley Fell House used to be before turning south east at (D)
to finish at Coastley (E) on the U 8299 at GR 899654.

The branch to Greenshaw Plain goes in a north westerly direction from GR 895656
(D). It makes a sharp turn at point F to meet the A69 at GR 894662 on the opposite
side of the road from the start of public bridleway 520/042. Historically the alleged
route continues to Common House (G) which is on this bridleway, which is described
in the inclosure award as Wharmley Road..

Because of its length, various reference points (A— G) have been marked on a copy
of the current OS map to aid identification.

For its full length it is in the parish of Haydon today and is shown on 0S Explorer OL
43,

For most of its length it is in a walled lane approximately 10 - 12 metres wide. Its
surface is largely grass over stone. The presence of the stone can be deducted from
the evidence of impeded drainage illustrated by the growth of reeds on those
sections visible from public roads today.

There are sections which are unfenced, mainly south of (B) where the fence/wall on
the west side of the alleged route no long remains and along the section called
Greenshaw Bank. There are a number of gates along the route. These can be seen
on Google Earth.

Currently there is no recorded definitive right of way along it. No record of it having
been stopped up has been found in the Quarter Sessions file.

See map with points of reference marked. See also photographs of the route

Documentary Evidence

1.

1755 Hexham East & West Inclosure Award Ref of Plan ZGI XXXI1/1-2
This early inclosure award was made under the local act of 1747. Itis avery large
plan showing most of the current public roads to the south and west of Hexham but
none of the roads are named. The plan shows the full length of the alleged route in
the same manner as the surrounding network of public tarmac roads today.
it is shown as a walled lane for most of its length. Adjacent land/farms present
today on the 0S, which are shown on this plan, include Elrington Ground, Longhope




The Road to Coastley with a branch to Greenshaw Plain

Ground and Coastley Ground. Mr Robt Lowes is shown as the owner of the
allotment where now there is a farm called Lowes Fell.

This document has been digitised and can be seen at Woodhorn. The reference of
the section showing the alleged route is ZGl 32/2 (full sheet). On it details can be
seen which are hard to read on the original copy for example the line of the turnpike
road which crosses the alleged route at (B) is shown as a faint double dash line.

The award is a separate document Ref of award QRD/2/1
This is a large volume containing this award along with other similar documents. The
relevant part can be found on pages 130-187.

On page 131 lower

‘And also that those Commissioners or any five or more of them should
ascertain, set out and appoint proper publick Highways and Roads in upon
and through those Commons to be inclosed with the size and breadth
therof.’

On page 134 lower

‘And we the Commissioners do hereby set out and award that it shall be
lawful for all persons hereafter to pass and repass in through and along all
and every of these publick highways known before by us set out and
appointed on foot on horseback or with any manner of carts or carriages
and also to drive any and all manner of cattle along the same.’

From reading the details in the award, it can be seen that the alleged route is made
up of parts of three of the awarded public roads. All three are described as being
12 yards wide. Frequently the description of a particular road refers to roads which
have been awarded earlier on in the award.

The public roads which make up the alleged route are:
¢ Woodshield Road
e Greenshawbank Road
¢ Road from Coastley West Gate



The Road to Coastley with a branch to Greenshaw Plain

Woodshield Road (see page 138 upper)

This awarded road starts at {(A), the southernmost point on the alleged route. 7t
leads from Elrington Road ..... in a direction to the north east across the turnpike
road.” This is point B on the location plan.

It continues ‘until it crosses the road from Coastley West Gate nearly north’. This
takes the alleged route to (C) on the location plan.

This awarded road (Woodshield Road) then continues in a generally north westerly
direction until it ends at Keepershield Gate but this application is not concerned with
the section of this road going beyond (C) in that direction.

Road from Coastley West Gate (see page 137 lower)

This awarded road makes up the section of the alleged route E—D - Cand is
described as ‘leading from Coastley West Gate westwards to the south end of
Greenshawbank Road (E — D).’ It then continues in the same direction ‘until it enters
the turnpike road ............ east of Woodhall Gate.”

This describes the full length of this awarded road but this application is only
concerned with the section to (C). The part continuing south west beyond (C) in the
direction of Woodhall Gate is not part of this application.

Greenshawbank Road (see page 137 lower)

This awarded road makes up the section of the alleged route G—F-D

it is described as being from Wharmley Gate ........ winding south eastwards up
Greenshaw Bank, then nearly south until it enters the highway set out and called by
the name of the Road from Coastley Westgate’. The junction between these two
highways is at point (D).

At the bottom of Greenshaw Bank, there is a label indicating the presence of
Greenshawbank Well (see location plan) which would have been an important
facility on a route used for driving cattle as the term ‘drift road’ on the Tithe
Award plan suggests. (see below)

See extracts from the plan and the sketch map.



2.

The Road to Coastley with a branch to Greenshaw Plain

1769 Armstrong’s Map of Northumberland
The point where the alleged route crosses the C 284 (B) near Langhope is shown
clearly on this map but the full length of the route is not shown. From the key it can
be seen that it is shown in the manner of a ‘country road’, the same as other minor

public tarmac roads in the area.

See extract from this map.

1819 Plan for Altering & Diverting part of the Hexham Turnpike Road

ref: NRO 317/26
In 1819, the road that is today the C 284 was the turnpike from Hexham going
west towards Carlisle, with the toll bar at Summerrods.

The plan shows the intersection between the turnpike and the alleged route at point
(B). It is labelled ‘awarded road’, referring to the plan of the inclosure award
described above. It is unlikely that it would have been necessary to show this
intersection if the alleged route had not been public at that time.

It also labels as ‘drift road’ the road described in the inclosure award as ‘Oxen Road’.
This today is a public bridieway known as Cushat Lane (524/029).

See extract from this plan showing the intersection.

1820 Fryer’s Map of Northumberland

The full length of the alleged route (A — E) and its branch (D — G) is shown along with
the farm names of Longhope, Coastley and East Elrington. It is shown as a walled
road throughout. From the key it can be seen that it is shown in the manner of
‘other roads’, the same as many minor public tarmac roads in the area today.

See extract from this map

1828 Greenwood’s Map of Northumberland

The full length of the alleged route to Coastley can be seen. It is shown as a walled
road except for the section on Greenshaw Bank which is shown as unfenced. From
the key it can be seen to be shown in the manner of a ‘cross road’, the same as many
minor country roads in the area.



The Road to Coastley with a branch to Greenshaw Plain

See extract from this map

. 1830 Plan of the Hexham Turnpike Road Ref: NRO 317/29
This later plan of the Hexham Turnpike also shows the intersection of the alleged
route with the turnpike at (B).

See extract from the plan

1839/1841 Tithe Awards

The alleged route is shown on two tithe awards for Hexham Parish, one for each
township.

The tithe plan covering West Quarter Township Ref: DT 242 M shows the full length
of the alleged route clearly with each of the roads being labelled as follows:

Point (A) is shown to be on a road labelled ‘Road from Elrington’
Point (B) is shown to be on a road labelled ‘Road from Haydon Bridge’

Beyond point (C) the label on the alleged route itself is ‘Road to West Boat’ [there
used to be a ferry across the Tyne from West Boat.]

At point (F), the road coming in from the west is labelled ‘Road from Haydon Bridge’

Point (G) is at the junction of two roads, one labelled ‘Road from Wharmley’ and the
other ‘To West Boat’ (BR 520/024).

The unfenced section of the alleged route to Coastley (E) is shown, as is the road
from there up the hill past Hackford (BR 524/003), which is labelled ‘Road to Low

Gate and Hexham’.

This shows that the alleged route is treated in the same manner as other roads in the
area which carry public rights today.

The tithe plan covering Hexham Township Ref: DT 241 L shows the alleged route
from point (A) to a point beyond (C) close to Glendue, where the township boundary
crosses the alleged route. Itis labelled ‘drift road’ which suggests that the public
rights to drive cattle mentioned in the Inclosure Award were the main use for the
route. This is backed up by the presence of a Greenshawbank Well, a little further on
towards F, which is marked on the inclosure award and on the 1* ed OS map (see
below).



The Road to Coastley with a branch to Greenshaw Plain

The junction at (B) where the alleged route crosses the turnpike road, labelled ‘to
Hexham’ to the east and ‘to Haydon Bridge’ to the west, can be clearly seen. it is
unlikely that there would have been a need to show this junction if the alleged route
had been private.

The distinctive bend in the alleged route at point (F) is also shown, as is the
continuation down past Greenshaw Plain House to Common House at G.

There is no mention of any roads in the award itself.

No extracts from these plans are provided as permission to photograph them was
withheld as the documents belong to the church.

. 1864 Hexham & Allendale Railway Plan Ref: Q/R/UP 114 a&b
On sheet no 1. the alleged route is shown crossing the zone of deviation for the
railway in the parish of Hexham. Plot 43 is described as ‘public road’ belonging to
the Commissioners of Greenwich Hospital and the Highways Board for Hexham.

In addition, to the south of the line of the proposed railway, the road pattern of the
alleged route is shown with the junction at (D) and the sharp bend at (F). Thisis
beyond the zone of variation so does not have a plot number in the Book of
Reference for Hexham parish.

See extracts from the plan and the Book of Reference.

. 1865 0S 1% ed. scale 1:2,500, 25" Sheets XCill/4, XCll1/8 & XCiv/1

The section of the alleged route from A to just north of Langhope is shown on Sheet
XCHI/8 to be in plot 90 lying in the Parish of Hexham, Township of Hexham. In the
Book of Reference for this parish and township, plot 90 is described as ‘public road’.

The alleged route continues on sheet XClll/4 with the same plot number (90) to the
point where the township boundary crosses it as it turns north. This occurs beyond
point (C) and south east of Glendue.

After that the alleged route continues past Coastley Fell House, still on Sheet XCl/4.
But now it has passed into the Parish of Hexham, Township of West Quarter
detached no 1. It is labelled with the plot number 45.



10.

11.

The Road to Coastley with a branch to Greenshaw Plain

The alleged route then continues, still as plot number 45, to D but it is now on Sheet
XCIV/1. The section labelled ‘Greenshaw Bank’ leading down to Coastley (E) is
unfenced but it is shown with a broken brace and is again labelled as plot 45 so it is
clearly a continuation of the same public road. In the Book of Reference for this
parish and township, plot 45 is described as ‘public road’.

The branch to Greenshaw Plain (D — F) is fenced with the first part before it crosses
the township boundary having the plot number 7. This section is still in Hexham
Parish, West Quarter Township detached no 1. In the Book of Reference plot 7 is
described as ‘public road’.

Beyond the parish boundary, this leg of the alleged route passes back into Hexham
Parish, Hexham Township with the plot number being 24. This plot number is also
described as ‘public road’ in the Book of Reference for this parish and township.

See extracts from this OS series and from the Book of Reference

1898 2"9ed OS scale 1:10,560 Sheets XClll NE & XCIV NW

The alleged route and the branch to Greenshaw Plain are clearly shown. The
southern section, from {A) to just past Coastley Fell House, not far from (D) is on
sheet XClil NE. The more northerly part both to Coastley and to Greenshaw Plain is
shown on sheet XCIV NW.

The section between Coastley (E) and the junction at (D) is labelled ‘Greenshaw
Bank’. This section is unfenced and has the label ‘BR’ against it. No such label is to
be found elsewhere on the alleged route or the branch.

See extracts from this OS series.

1910 Finance Act plan Sheets XClii/4, XCIIl/8 &XCIV/1

Book of Reference Ref: NRO 2000/77 & 2000/75

On the Finance Act plan for this area the township boundaries are highlighted with a
wide yellow band which makes it difficult to see the underlying colours used to
indicate the landownership boundaries. But it would appear, if the plan is examined
with a magnifying glass, that the alleged route is shown as a ‘white road’ for much of
its length indicating that is not in the ownership of the adjacent landholders.



12.

The Road to Coastley with a branch to Greenshaw Plain

Using the Book of Reference NRO 2000/77 for the West Quarter Township, it can be
seen that none of the adjacent properties — Langhope (plot 206), Coastley Fell House
(plot 210), Coastley (plot 204) are awarded deductions for public rights of way which
is what you would expect if the alleged route was considered to be a public road and
therefore would not have been included in any of these plots.

Similarly in the Book of Reference NRO 2000/75 for Hexham Township, it can be
seen that there is no deduction for other adjacent properties — Greenshaw Plain
House, Common House, Lowes Fell (plot 2125) and Glendue (plot 2017).

it should be noted that there is also no deductions for two further awarded roads in
the area — Wharmley Road and Oxen Road, which today are public bridleways

520/042 and 524/029.

However the section from D — E which is shown as being unfenced, is included in the
land holding of plot 204 attached to Coastley.

See extracts from the plans

1924 3 ed 0S. Scale 1:10,560 Sheet 91 SE

The alleged route and the branch to Greenshaw Plain are shown in a similar manner
to that on the 2™ ed OS. However by this time the wall either side on the

section (A) — (B) is no longer complete. The western side has disappeared for about
two thirds of this section. However the two walls remain intact for the rest of the
alleged route and branch with the exception of Greenshaw Bank as described

above as far as one can see from a public road or bridleway.

See extracts from this OS series.

Conclusion

It would appear that this well documented ancient public highway was omitted from the
definitive map in the 1950s. Please can you investigate whether it should be added now as

a restricted byway?
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